
Table 1: Temperature Violations 
Permit Limit:	 85 degrees Fahrenheit (June - September) (Daily Maximum) 

65 degrees Fahrenheit (October - November) (Daily Maximum) 
60 degrees Fahrenheit (December - May) (Daily Maximum) 

Date Reported Value 
(degrees F) 

July 1 102.0 
July 2 97.3 
July 3 88.4 
July 5 92.6 
July 8 85.5 
July 9 103.3 
July 11 87.9 
July 14 87.9 
July 16 92.3 
July 17 91.4 
July 18 87.3 
July 19 85.2 
July 21 86.5 
July 23 86.3 
July 24 88.5 
July 26 88.6 
July 29 86.7 
July 30 89.0 
August 1 92.2 
August 2 85.5 
August 3 92.2 
August 8 86.7 
August 9 92.1 
August 12 86.1 
August 17 89.4 
August 18 88.1 
August 27 85.2 
September 1 89.5 
September 2 88.2 
September 7 87.0 
September 10 87.8 
October 1 67.7 
October 3 65.3 
October 6 67.0 
October 24 65.8 
Total: 35 days of violation 
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Table 2: Biological Oxygen Demand (BODS) Violations 
Permit Limit: 5.0 mg/L (weekly average) (May - October) 

10.0 mg/L (weekly average) (November - April) 
Date Reported 

Value (mgIL) 
July 3 (week 1) 56 
July 16 (week 3) 7.0 
July 30 ( week 5) 18 
August 12 ( week 7) 65 
August 19 ( week 8) 33 
August 27 ( week 9) 9.3 
September 3 (week 10) 40 
September 9 (week 11) 20 
September 18 (week 12) 72 
September 23 (week 13) 23 
October 2 (week 14) 26 
October 9 (week 15) 23 
October 14 (week 16) 99 
October 21 (week 17) 8.6 
November 4 (week 19) 18 
November 11 (week 20) 11 
November 18 (week 21) 25 
December 3 (week 23) 15 
December 12 (week 24) 28 
Total: 133 days of violation 

Table 3: Total Suspended Solids (ISS) Violations 
Permit Limit: 10 mg/L (monthly average) 

Date Reported Value 
(mg/L) 

July 34.05 
August 20.25 
September 31 
October 17.4 
November 16.9 
December 15.9 
Total: 184 days of violation 

Table 1: Dissolved Oxygen (DO) Violations 
P 't L' 't 70 IL (d '1 t)ermt imi : mf!, auy mtnunum 
Date Reported 

August 5 (week 6) 
Value (mWL) 
6.9 

September 18 (week 12) LO 
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Table 5: Oil & Grease Violations 
P 't L' . 15 mg;IL (d "l Vermt tmit: auy maxtmum 
Date 

September 9 

Reported Value 
(mg/L) 
31 

September 24 41 
Total: 2 days of violation 

Table 6: Chlorine Violations (sampled)
 
P 't L' 't 38 P&IL (d. "l . V d 24 pg/L (weekly average)
 ermt tmi s: at y maxtmum an 
Date Reported Value 

(1l2/L) 
August 19 (week 8) 200 (daily maximum) 
August 19 (week 8) 200 (weekly average) 
Total: 8 days of violation 

Table 7: Chlorine Violations (calculated)
 
Permit Limits: .0541bs/day (daily maximum) and o00341bs/day (weekly average)
 
Date Reported Value 

(lbs/day) 
August 19 (week R) 0.14 (daily maximum) 
August 19 (week 8) 0.14 (weekly average) 
Total: 8 days of violation 

Table 8: Phosphorus Violations 
P . 't L 't 1 0 IL (R It 120ermt lml: . mg, o mg -month average) 
Date Reported Value 

(mg/L) 
September 1.1757 
October 1.1155 
November 1.1155 
December 1.1155 
Total: 122 days of violation 

Table 9: Zinc Violations (sampled)
 
Permi°t L'tmi'ts: 690 fl.!:!;IL (dat'1y maximumVand 110 J1gIL (weekly average)
 
Date Reported Value (llgIL) 
July 3 (week 1) 890 (daily maximum) 

890 (weekly average) 
140 (weekly average) 
130 (weekly average) 
380 (weekly average) 

July 3 (week 1) 
July 23 (week 4) 
August 5 (week 6) 
August 12 (week 7) 
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August 19 (week 8) 210 (weekly average) 
August 27 (week 9) 280 (weekly average) 
September 3 (week 10) 130 (weekly average) 
September 9 (week 11) 240 (weekly average) 
September 18 (week 12) 130 (weekly average) 
September 24 (week 13) 380 (weekly average) 
October 2 (week 14) 300 (weekly average) 
October 9 (week 15) 260 (weekly average) 
October 14 (week 16) 120 (weekly average) 
October 21 (week 17) 380 (weekly average) 
October 28 (week 18) 410 (weekly average) 
November 4 (week 19) 360 (weekly average) 
November 11 (week 20) 250 (weekly average) 
November 28 (week 22) 250 (weekly average) 
December.J (week 23) 270 (weekly average) 
December 12 (week 24) 450 (weekly average) 
December 17 (week 25) 430 (weekly average) 
December 23 (week 26) 280 (weekly average) 
December 30 (week 27) 210 (weekly average) 
Total: 162 days of violation 

Table 10: Zinc Violations (calculated)
 
Permit Limits: 0.98 lbs/day (daily maximum) and 0.16 lbs/day (weekly average)
 
Date Reported Value (lbs/day) 
July 3 (week 1) 0.19 (weekly average) 
September 24 (week 13) 0.31 (weekly average) 
October 2 (week 14) 0.22 (weekly average) 
October 9 (week 15) 0.19 (weekly average) 
October 21 (week 17) 0.33 (weekly average) 
October 28 (week 18) 0.30 (weekly average) 
November 4 (week 19) 0.25 (weekly average) 
November 11 (week 20) 0.20 (weekly average) 
November 28 (week 22) 0.19 (weekly average) 
December 3 (week 23) 0.18 (weekly average) 
December 12 (week 24) 0.21 (weekly average) 
December 17 (week 25) 0.22 (weekly average) 
Total: 84 days of violation 

Table 11: Additive Violations
 
Permit Limit: 55.9 mg/L (daily maximum)
 
Date Reported Value 

(m~lL) 
July 2 99 
July 3 89 
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July 4 74 
July 5 83 
July 6 89 
July 7 106 
July 11 99 
July 12 217 
July 13 485 
July 14 309 
July 15 62 
July 16 81 
July 17 87 
July 18 84 
July 28 59 
July 29 57 
August 1 59.3 
August 2 77.4 
August 3 87.7 
August 4 81.6 
August 5 143.2 
August 6 183.5 
August 13 99.1 
August 14 76.7 
August 16 98.6 
August 21 58.8 
August 26 73.7 
August 27 62.6 
Total: 28 days of violation 

B. Violations ofMonitoring or Reporting Re,guirements 

In addition to the numerous violations of the effluent limitations listed above, CWAC has 
reason to believe that Utica has committed the following violations ofthe Permit's monitoring 
and reporting requirements: 

a e : .at ure to onitor or Renortt. bI 12 R ·1 u· 
Date Parameter Violation Permit Requirement 

July 2008 
(week 1) 

pH Failure to sample 
and/or report results 

Grab sample on a weekly basis 

July 2008 
(week 1) 

DO Failure to sample 
and/or report results 

Grab sample on a weekly basis 

July 2008 
(week 1) 

Oil & Grease Failure to sample 
and/or report results 

Grab sample on a weeklybasis 

July 2008 
(week 1) 

Chlorine (Total 
residual) 

Failure to sample 
and/or report results 

Grab sample on a weekly basis 
(daily max. concentration) 

Notice of Intent to Sue under the Clean Water Act 
Utica Energy LLC 

Page 7 of 13 



July 2008 
. (week 1) 

Chlorine (Total 
residual) 

Failure to calculate 
-and/or.report results 

Grab sample on a weekly basis 
(weekly average concentration) 

July 2008 
(week 1) 

Chlorine (Total 
residual) 

Failure to sample 
and!orreport results 

Calculated (daily max. mass 
limit) 

July 2008 
(week 1) 

Chlorine (Total 
residual) 

Failure to sample 
and!or report results 

Calculated (weekly average 
mass limit) 

July 2008 
(week 1) 

Phosphorus Failure to sample 
and!or report results 

24-Hr Flow Prop. Compo (12­
month rolling average) 

July 2008 
(week 1) 

Arsenic Failure to sample 
and!or report results 

24-Hr Flow Prop. Compo 
(monthly average) 

July 2008 
(week 1) 

Arsenic Failure to· sample 
and!or report results 

Calculated (monthly mass limit) 

July 2008 
(week 2) 

BODS Failure to sample 
and!or report results 

Grab sample on a weekly basis 

July 2008 
(week 2) 

TSS Failure to sample 
and!or report results 

Grab sample on a weekly basis 

July 2008 
(week 2) 

pH Failure to sample 
and!or report results 

Grab sample on a weekly basis 

July 2008 
(week 2) 

DO Failure to sample 
and!or report results 

Grab sample on a weekly basis 
(daily max. concentration) 

July 2008 
(week 2) 

Oil & Grease Failure to calculate 
and!or report results 

Grab sample on a weekly basis 
(weekly average concentration) 

July 2008 
(week 2) 

Chlorine (Total 
residual) 

Failure to sample 
and/or report results 

Calculated (daily max. mass 
limit) 

July 2008 
(week 2) 

Chlorine (Total 
residual) 

Failure to sample 
and!or report results 

Calculated (weekly average 
mass limit) 

July 2008 
(week 2) 

Chlorine (Total 
residual) 

Failure to sample 
and!or report results 

24-Hr Flow Prop. Compo (12­
month rolling average) 

July 2008 
(week 2) 

Chlorine (Total 
residual) 

Failure to sample 
and!or report results 

Grab sample on a weekly basis 

July 2008 
(week 2) 

Phosphorus Failure to sample 
and!or report results 

Grab sample on a weekly basis 

July 2008 
(week 2) 

Arsenic Failure to sample 
and!or report results 

24-Hr Flow Prop. Compo 
(monthly average) 

July 2008. 
(week 2) 

Arsenic Failure to sample 
and!or report results 

Calculated (montWy mass limit) 

Total: 22 days of violation 

C. Other Permit Violations 

Based on documents contained in the public record, Utica appears to have committed a 
number of additional miscellaneous permit violations as described in this section. 
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(1) Failure to Submit Required Plans 

Several Permit provisions require the submittal of plans to the Wisconsin DNR by 
September 30, 2008. According to the NOV dated November 6,2008, Utica did not meet that 
deadline and has yet to submit certain plans to the DNR as described in Table 12. Each day that 
Utica failed or fails to submit the required plans to DNR constitutes a new and separate permit 
violation. 

. d I ijf;' . DNRt:abl 13 R"l to su bmit pans toe ai ure mi require tsconstn 
Permit Section Violation 
4.1 Failure to submit Outfall 001 Sampling Plan by 

September 30, 2008 - ongoing 
4.3 Failure to submit RO Unit Management Plan by 

September 30, 2008 - ongoing 
4.4 Failure to submit Iron Filtration Management Plan 

by September 30, 2008 - ongoing 
4.5 Failure to submit Cooling Tower Maintenance Plan 

by September 30, 2008 - ongoing 
4.7 Failure to submit Yard Maintenance Plan by 

September 30, 2008 - ongoing 
4.8 Failure to submit Land Application Management 

Plan by September 30, 2008 - ongoing 
Total: 720 days of violation 

(2) Failure to Notify DNR ofEffluent Limit Violations 

Utica failed to notify Wisconsin DNR, either verbally or in writing, for each of the permit 
exceedences listed in Tables 1 through 10 (a total of769 days of violation). Each of these 
failures constitutes a separate violation of Permit section 5.2.1, which requires that Utica notify 
DNR within 24 hours of becoming aware of the noncompliance. 

(3) Failure to Report Limits ofDetection and Quantification 

On the July, August, September, and October DMRs, Utica failed to include the Limit of 
Detection ("LOD") and Limit of Quantification ("LOQ") for all sampled parameters. On the 
November DMR, Utica failed to include the LOD and LOQ for some parameters, as described 
below. Section NR 149.47(1)(e)(11), Wis. Admin. Code, requires LOD and LOQ to be included 
in laboratory test results, and Section NR 149.48(2), Wis. Admin. Code lists those tests for which 
the DNR requires LaD and LOQ values. Each failure to provide LOD and LOQ is a violation of 
Permit sections 5.1.1 and 5.1.4. 

There are at least 16 violations of these requirements per month from July through 
October (missing LOD and LOQ for TSS, DO, Oil & Grease, Chlorine, Phosphorus, Zinc, 
Arsenic, and Additives) and at least 10 violations of these requirements for the month of 
November (missing LOD and LOQ for TSS, Phosphorus, Zinc, Arsenic, and Additives), for a 
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total of74 violations. 

(4) Failure to Correctly Report Results Less than the LOD 

On at least 26 occasions, as shown on the monthly DMRs, Utica reported a chlorine grab 
sample result of"O". Each such entry is a violation Permit section 5.1.4 which requires the 
reporting of values less than the LOD to be given in "<[LaD]" format. 

(5) Failure to Submit True, Accurate, and Complete DMRs 

Por six consecutive days beginning on August 7, Utica reported a flow rate of 73,751 
MOD and a calculated additive concentration of 55.9 mg/L. The likelihood of Utica having the 
same flow rate for six consecutive days is remote; thus it is alleged that, for the five days from 
August 8 through August 12, Utica had ten separate violations of Section 5.1.1 of the Permit 
(five for flow rate and five for calculation of additive concentration), which requires that the 
DMRs be "true, accurate, and complete." 

In summary, CWAC alleges that Utica committed at least the following Permit 
violations, and that these violations are ongoing: 

•	 769 days ofviolation of various numeric effluent limitations (permit section 2.2.1) 
•	 22 days of violation of monitoring and reporting requirements (Permit sections 2.2.1 and 

5.1) 
•	 720 days of violation of the requirement to submit certain plans to Wisconsin DNR 

(Permit section 4) 
•	 769 days ofviolation of the requirement to notify the Wisconsin DNR of each violation 

of a maximum discharge limitation within 24 hours after becoming aware of the 
noncompliance (Permit section 5.2.1) 

•	 74 days ofviolation of the requirement to include LOD and LOQ where required (Permit 
sections 5.1.1 and 5.1.4) . 

•	 26 days of violation of the requirement to report values less than the LaD in the specified 
format (Permit section 5.1.4) 

•	 10 days ofviolation of the requirement to report the true, accurate, and complete results 
of monitoring, including flow rates and calculated additive concentration (Permit section 
5.1.1) 

It appears that Utica has had at least 2,390 days of violation since the Permit was issued 
on July 1, 2008. Utica may be liable for civil penalties in the amount of $32,500 per- violation 
per day for violations occurring through January 12,2009, and $37,500 per violation per day for 
violations occurring after that date. See 33 U.S.C. § 1319(d); 40 c.P.R. § 19.4; U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency, Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rille, 73 PR 
75340 (December 11, 2008). Should CWAC file suit against Utica, it will seek the imposition of 
the full amount of civil penalties for which Utica is or may be liable, which currently totals 
$77,675,000. 
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CWAC believes that the violations identified above are ongoing, and that further 
violations will be discovered during the sixty-day notice period or after litigation commences. 
To the extent permitted by law, the parties giving notice intend to seek relief for any and all 
violations that have yet to be discovered or that occur after the date ofthis letter. 

IV. RELIEF TO BE SOUGHT 

The citizen suit provision ofthe Clean Water Act grants the Federal district courts 
jurisdiction to enforce effluent standards or limitations or other permit conditions as necessary. 
33 U.S.C. § 1365(a). Should CWAC file suit, they will seek, among other possible remedies: 

•	 Injunctive relief to the extent necessary to bring Utica into full and immediate
 
compliance with the Clean Water Act;
 

•	 Imposition of civil penalties in the amount of $32,500 per violation per day, for a total of 
$77,675,000; 

•	 Attorneys' fees, costs, and other litigation expenses as allowed by 33 U.S.C. § 1365(d); 
and 

•	 Any other relief that acourt may deem appropriate 

V. PARTIES GIVING NOTICE 

The party giving notice is: 

Clean Water Action Council of Northeastern Wisconsin 
c/o Rebecca Katers, Executive Director 
2484 Manitowoc Rd. 
Green Bay, WI 54311 
(920) 468-4243 

CWAC requests that it be contacted though its attorneys as follows: 

Midwest Environmental Advocates 
c/o Jamie Saul, Staff Attorney or 

Karen Schapiro, Executive Director 
551 W. Main Street, Suite 200 
Madison, WI 53703 
Ph: (608) 251-5047 
Fax: (608) 268-0205 
jsaul@midwestadvocates.org 

Clean Water Action Council ofNortheastern Wisconsin is a non-profit corporation 
organized under the laws of the State of Wisconsin, with its principal office in Green Bay, 
Wisconsin. CWAC is a membership organization with approximately 350 members in 
Northeastern Wisconsin. CWAC works to protect and prevent degradation of fresh water, 
including Lake Winnebago, the Fox River and its tributaries, and Lake Michigan. CWAC 
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members enjoy recreation, fishing, wildlife observation and other activities on and near the Fox 
River, Lake Winnebago, and Lake Michigan. 

VI. CONCLUSION 

If you have information showing that any of the violations described in this letter either 
did not occur or have been fully resolved, please provide it to CWAC immediately. During the 
sixty-day notice period CWAC is available to discuss what steps may be taken to resolve Utica's 
ongoing Clean Water Act violations without resort to litigation. CWAC encourages you to 
contact them through their attorneys as soon as possible should you desire to discuss the 
allegations set forth in this letter; if this matter is not resolved to the satisfaction of CWAC it will 
file suit on the sixtieth day following the date of this letter. 

Sincerely, /1 

-».« ~ 
~STENVIRONMENTAL ADVOCATES 

Karen M. Schapiro, Executive Director 
Wisconsin BarNo. 1022172 

James N. Saul, StaffAttorney 
Wisconsin Bar No. 1067236 

Counsel to Clean Water Action Council of 
Northeastern Wisconsin 

Copies To: 

Eric H. Holder Jr., Attorney General 
U.S. Department of Justice 
950 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW 
Washington, DC 20530-0001 

Ms. Lisa Jackson, Administrator 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Ariel Rios Building 
1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, N. W. 
Mail Code: 1l01A 
Washington, DC 20460 
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Mr. Bharat Mathur, Acting Regional Administrator 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5 
77 W. Jackson Blvd. 
Chicago, IL 60604 

Mr. Matthew Frank, Secretary 
Wisconsin Department ofNatural Resources 
101 South Webster St. 
P.O. Box 7921 
Madison, WI 53707-7921 

Mr. Todd Ambs, Water Division Administrator 
Wisconsin Department ofNatural Resources· 
101 South Webster St. 
P.O. Box 7921 
Madison, WI 53707-7921 

Ms. Rebecca Katers, Executive Director 
Clean Water Action Council ofNortheastem Wisconsin 
2484 Manitowoc Rd. 
Green Bay, WI 543 i 1 
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